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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAIL. AWARDS

Board of Commizsioners
Lancaster County, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmaeantal aclivilies, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lancaster County, Nebraska (the
County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the County's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is {0 express opinions on ihese
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generalty accepied in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significani estimates made by
management, as wel as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonahie basis for our opinions,

In our apinion, the financial statements of the County referred io above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of and for the vear ended
June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, for the year then ended in conformily accounting principlas generally accepied in the
United States of America.

The County has not presenied Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America has determined is necessary fo
supplament, although not requirad to be part of, the basic financial statements.

The budgetary information on pages 46 to 48 is not a part of the basic financiaf statements but
is supplemental information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
Siates of America. We have applied cerfain mited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplemental information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (Continued)

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplemental
information on pages 52 through 70 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedute of Expenditures of
Federal Awards on pages 4@ through 51 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by 1J.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the County. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (pages 48 through
51} and Combining Statements — Governmental and Propristary Funds (pages 52 through 60)
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in refation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. We have appiied certain timited procedurss to the
Statements of Accountability (pages 61 through 70), which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation. However, we did not
audit the other suppiemental information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 17, 2008, on our consideration of Lancaster County, Nebraska’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, -
contracts, and grant agreements and other mafters. The purpose of that report is fo describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our

audit, __ S
By ~Fesiarms, L

Omaha, Nebraska
March 17, 2009
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

Governmental
ASSETS Asctivities
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents, snd Investments 5 41,196,562
Interest Recedvable 172,806
Due From (tner Governmental Agencies 5.805,438
Patient 2nd Insuranca Raceivable
Less Alicwance for Doubtful Accounts of $215,.728 116,030
Taxes Receivable 21,451,470
Tatal Current Assets 68,741,604
CAPITAL ASSETS
Mon-depreciable Capitat Assets
Land 2 596,961
Construction In Progress 902,208
Total Mon-depreciable Capital Assels 10,488,869
Depreciable Gapilal Assets 165,535,163
Lass Accumuizted Depreciation {54,363,319)
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 1A71,834
Tatad Capital Assets 114,670,703
DTHER ASSETS
Diabt issuance Costs, Mat of Accurnulated Amortization 100,007
£} 180,612,314
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 3 4,554,141
Defarred Tay Revenus 1817341
Accrued Interast Payable 76,576
Claims Liability 1,372,183
Accrued Salaries 1,438,829
Due {0 Other Governmental Agencles 125,300
Currant Portion of Compansatad Absences 1.878.588
Cument Portion of Bonds Payable 1,180,000
Currenl Porlion of Gapital Lease Obligations 268,277
Accrued Expenses 105.000
Total Current Liabilities 12,568,354
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES .
Accrued Compensated Absences, Less Corranl Pordion 3,736,521
Bonds Payabie, Less Current Porfion 4,517,632
Capital Lease Obligatians, Lass Current Portion 46.012
Total Long-Term Liabiliies £,300,165
Totat Lisbilifies 20,869,119
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -
NET ASSETS
fvesied In Capital Agsets, Nei of Related Debt 103,900.782
Reastricted For Debt Service 2651 071
Unrestrleted 51,181,341
Totat Net Assets 158,643,194
$ 180,512,313

The aceompanying netes to financial
statements are an integral part of these statements
-8



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 364, 2008

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and Change
in Mot Asseis

Primary Government

Operatlng Grants and

Expenges GCharges for Services Contributions Governmental Actlvities
FUNCTIDNS/PROGRAMS
General Govermmenl % 84 807,151 $ 27,174,104 $ 2572988 § (55,060,078}
Putiic Safaly - Law Enfarcamant - - - -
Public Safaty - Other - 63,233 - 63,233
Caramunity Development 1,659,317 7601 - {1,691, 715}
Public Warks 14,778,822 4,811,243 188 {8,567,350}
Public Heslth and Human Services 33,041,327 28,588,477 2,096.826 (2,345,024}
Culture and Recreation 1,361,683 74,74 - {1.316,372)
Debt Service infarsst 458 316 109,116 - (345 2004
Totel Governmental Activities 3 [RLREC 60830485 & 4,669,964 {70,666,547)
=
GEMERAL REVENUES
Taxes
Properly Tax 53,665,528
Motor Vehicie Tax 8,501 280
Inheritance Tax 4,250,078
Homestoad Exemption 1,358,017
In-lieu-of Tax 1,340,999
CarlinefAirine Tax 404 673
Insurance Tax 312,411
MY Prorate Tax 245,814
Fodning Tax 2,288,957
Other
Stale Aitf o Courties 743,057
Mracellanecus 1,872,248
Intergovernmeantal 523114
Investment Income 3,131,724
Trarwshors 1,667,348
Total General Revanuss 787783383
CHAMNGE 1M MET ASBETS B.062,538

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR, As Previsusly Stated
PRIGR PERICD ADJUSTMENT
NET ASBETS - BEGINMING OF YEAR, As Restated

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

The accompranying notes fo fiancial
statements are an integral part of these statements

_4-

161,503,663

76,696

151,580,355

$ 159,643,145
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET -
GOVERNMENTAL FIUNDS TC THE STATEMENT QF NET ASSETS
June 390, 2008

Total Fund Salances - Sovernmental Funds 3 51,498,018

Amounis reporied in the governmental activities in the statement of nel assats are different bacause:

Capital asseis are reported at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation,
on the stalement of nel essels, including internal service funds. 191,870,703

Cebt izsuance costs are reported al histonizal cost, net of accumuiaied amortization,
on the statement of net assets, ncluding internat service funds, 104,007

Internal service funds are usad by the County to charga the cost of certaln activities o
individual funds, The assats and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in the govemnmeantal activities In the statemeant of nat assets, #8585 422

Proparty tax revenues, not sollected within G0 days of the fiscat yaar end are not
financial resowrces and, therelore, nob riepoded i the governmentai funds. (1,817,341}

The issuance of bonds payable, net of tond discounts provides current inancial resowrces to governmants fungs,
while the rapayment of the principal consumes the currant financial resoursas of governmental funds. (5,897.832)

The following expenses reponed in the statement of activitias do not raguite the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not raponed as expendituras in
the governmental funds;

Caopital icgse obkgations {77,286}
Accriged compensated absences {5.845,119)
Accrued intérest payable 76,575)
Met Assets - Governmentai Activities g 159,643,195

The accormpanying notes 1o financial
statements are an integral part of these statements
-5 -
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
RECGNGILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Yaar Ended June 39, 2608

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Sovernmental Funds
Amounts reported in the governmeantal aciivities in the statement of aciivilies are different because:
Recharacterization of capital assels

Capital cutlays are reported as expenditures in the fund financial statements. Howaver. they are preseniad
as ansats in the statement of activities and depraciated over their estimaled economic fives

Loss on sale of capital assels
Current year depreciation expense for total capital assets

Govarnmantal funds recognize praparty tax revenues as revenues when received within 80 days of the end
of the fiscal year. However, in the statement of sctivities, properly tax revenues are recognized based
on the total taxes levied. This amount of property tax revenues is dug Lo the County but not coliectad
within 80 days of e fiscal year '

Debt payments are expendilures in the govarnmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities
in the statement of nat assets
Bond payments
Capital lzase paymenis

Gavernmental funds report the effest on issuance costs, pramiums, and discounts whan debt is first
issued, whareas these amounls are defarred and amortized in the statemenl of activities

Certain items reporied in the staternents of activities do not reauire the use of current financial reseurces
and therefore are nok reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued interest expanse

internal service funds are used by the County to charge the costs of cerlain achivities to individual funds.
The activities of the internal service funds are included in the aovernmental achivities in the statement of
aclivities, nel of deoreaation expense and hond payments which are included above

Change in Net Assets - Gavernmental Funds

The accompanying notes te financial
statements are anintegraf part of these staternants
B

5 3,703,547

(28,643)

8,279.465
{379,785}

(3.766,598)

77.200

1,135,000
37,208

15,000}

{373,020
{5.292)

{679,158}

$ 8082838



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2008

Total
internal Service
ASSETS Funds
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents % 11,022,874
Due From Other Governmental Agencies 7,739
interest Receivable 15,703
Total Current Assets 11,046,116
CAPITAL ASSETS
Non-depreciable Capital Assets
L.and 500,000
Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 6,872,862
{ess Accumulated Depreciation {2,807,854)
Total Capital Assets 4,465,008
OTHER ASSETS
Debt lssuance Costs, Net of Accumuiated Amortization 60,620
5 15,571,744
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 3 16,028
Accrued Interest Payable 55,088
Claims Liability 1,372,193
Ascrued Salaries 2,472
Current Portion of Accrued Compensated Absences 4 981
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 570,000
Total Current Liabilities 2,020,743
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Partion of Accrued Compensaled Absences 21,577
Bonds Payabie, |.ess Current Partion 2,193,384
Total Long-Term Liahilities 2,214,971
Tota! Liakilites 4,235714
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,268,639
Uniestricied 10,067,391
Total Net Assets 11,336,030
$ 15,571,744

The accompanying notes to financiaf
statements are an integral part of these statements
-9-




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Other
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Insurance

Contractual

Depreciation

Wages and Benefits

Other

Amortization

Rantal

Repairs and Maintenance

City/County Shared

Supplies

Travsi

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 34, 2008

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest on investments

Realized Gain on Investmenis

interest Expense

Total Nan-Operating Revenues {(Expenses)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR, As Previously Stated

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR, As Restated

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes to financial
statements ars an integral part of these statements

10 -

Total
Internal Service
Funds

$ 11,367,414
24,805

11,392,219

10,142,970
1,395,908
137,216
122,077
62,745
11,525
4,277

212

365

670

222

11,878,187

(485 968)

209,360
132,746
(130,036)

203,070

(282,898}
11,630,066

{11,138)

11,618,828

13 11,336,830




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Tatal
Internai Service
Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from User Charges % 11,482,263
Payments for Employee Indemnity {1,581,010)
Payments for Claims/insurance {8,856,213)
Net Cash Used [n Operaling Activities {54,860)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Capilai Asseis {429,518}
Payments on Bonds Payable {545,000}
Payments of interest on Bands Payabla {136,820}
tet Cash Used In Capital and Related Financing Activitias {1,411,338)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 259,575
Proceeds From Sale of investments 8,303,756
Purchase of investments {2,128,786)
het Cash Pravided By Investing Activities 4,434,575
increase In Cash And Cash Equivaients 3,268,277
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,754,387
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 11,022,674
RECONCHIATION OF GPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cparating Loss 3 (485,668)
Adjustmeants to Reconclle Operating Loss to Nat Cash Used in
Qperating Activities:
Depreciation 137,216
Amortization 11625
{increase) Decrease in Current Assets:
Due From Other Governmental Agencies 161,154
Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 3105
Agccrued Salaries 53
Rent Received In Advance {71,109)
Accrued Compensated Absences 2392
Claims Liability 186,672
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities % {54,960}

The accompanying noates to financial
staternants are an integral part of these statements
-1 -



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 38, 2008

Pension Trust
ASSETS Fund Agency Funds

Cash, Cash Equivaients, and Investments $ 88715670 3 16,923,673

$ 86,715,670 $ 16,923,673

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Govermental Agencies 3 - $ 16923673

NET ASSETS
Held in Trust For Pension Benefits 86715670

$ 86,715,670 $ 16,923,673

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of these statements
a2 -



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY EUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2008

ADDITIONS

Contributions:
Employer
Employes
Military Catch-Up

Investment Earnings:
Net Decrease in Fair Value of Investments
Total Additions

BEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS MELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS - END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes to financial
statements are an integral part of these statements
-13-

Penston Trust Fund

2 434 493
3,602 243
11,201

6,137,837

{4,505,852)

1,631,985

4,717,816

{3,085 831}

89,801,501

§

86,716,670




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of the significant accounting policies of Lancaster County, Nebraska (the
County), is presented to assist in understanding the County's financial statements. The
fnancial statements and notes are representations of the County's management who are
responsible for their integrity and objectivily. These accounting policies conform to accounting
principies generally accepied in the United States of America and have been consistently
applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Organization and Principal Activity

The County is a governmental entity established by the laws of the State of Nebraska. The
County is a political subdivision of the State of Nebraska and is governad by a five member
Beard of Commissioners elected by the citizens of Lancaster County, Nebraska. The
County's responsibilities include general social welfare; operation of a County health center;
corrections; youth cenier; maintenance of streets and highways not within any incorporated
city, viltage, or sanitary and improvement district; legal court-related activilies; licensing,
recording, and assessment of real property; tax collection for ali Nebraska pubiic entities
within the County; conducting elections: and law enforcement.

Reporting Entity

The County follows the standards promulgated by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No.
39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Unifs, that define the
financial reporting entity as the one consisting of (a) the primary govermment, (b}
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountabie, and (c) other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete,

The accompanying financial sfatemenis include the transactions of the County's primary
government, component units, and blended component units, as discussed below.

Primary Government
The primary government has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and

is fiscally independent of other governments. The primary government of the County
consists of all the organizations that comprise the legal entity.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizalions for which the County is financially
accountable and/or for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
County are such that exclusion would cause the financial statements to be misleading or
incompiete. The County is considered to be financially accountable for an organization
when either:

1. The County appoints a voting majority of the organization governing body and can
impose its will on that organization, or

2. There is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefit to, or
impose specific financial burden on the County.

Blended Component Linit

Despite being legally separate, component units that are so intertwined with the primary
government that they are, in substance, the same as the primary government are
reported as part of the primary government. The criteria for this determination are:

1. The component unit's governing body is substantially the same as the governing
body of the primary government, and

2. The component unit provides services entirgly or aimost entirely to the primary
government or otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefils the primary
government by providing services that the primary government would have
provided if they were not provided by the component unit.

Based on the criteria above, the County has identified Lancasler Leasing Corporation
{the Corparation) as a component unit,

The Corporation exists for the purpose of issuing bonds for the acquisition or
construction of facilities, which in tunm are leased {o the County. Separate audited
financial statements of the Corporation are available at the County Clerk's Office,
County/City Building, 555 South 10" Street, Lincoin, Nebraska 68508.

Joint Ventures

The County has entered info two (2) multi-governmental arrangements creating two (2)
entities that are governed by representatives from each of the participating governments,
These eniities are considered to be joint ventures. The County does not have an
ongoing financial interest (equity interest);, therefore, these joint ventures are not
included in the financial statements of the County.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 36, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Lincoin-Lancaster County Public Building Commission

in 1920, the City of Lincoln, Nebraska (the City) and the County, pursuant to State
Statute, activated a separate governmental entity designated as the Lincoln-Lancaster
County Public Building Commission (the Commission). The purpose of this joint venture
is to design, acquire, construct, maintain, operate, improve, remodel, remove and
reconstruct, so fong as its corporate exisience continues, public buildings, structures, or
facilities for use jointly by the City and the County, The City and the County each
appoint two members to the five-member Commission, with the fifth member being
appointed by the other four members. All property held or acquired by the Commission
is held or acguired in the name of the City and the County for use by the Commission in
its corporate capacity. The Commission's costs of aperation and debt service are
funded through rental payments made by the City and the County based upon their
proportionate occupancy of such buildings to the extent not covered by a maximum

property tax levy of 1.7 cents for each $100 of actual valuation of taxable property in the
County.

As of June 30, 2008, the Comimission had bonds outstanding of $46,434,005 attributable
to several bond issues. Proceeds fram the bonds have been utilized by the Commission
to acquire, construct, and/or renovate certain buildings occupied by the City and the
County. The County's proporiionate share of such buildings is recorded as capital
assets on the books of the County.

Separate audited financial statements of the Commission may be obtained at the
Lincoln-Lancaster County Public Building Commission, 920 "0" Sireet, Room 203,
Lincon, Nebraska 68508,

Lancaster County Fairgrounds Joint Public Agency

The Lancaster County Fairgrounds Joint Public Agency (the Agency) was estabiished fo
acquire fand and construct capital improvements thereon for the establishment and
expansion of the Lancaster County Fairgrounds. The Agency is not accumulating
significant financial resources and is not experiencing fiscal siress that could cause an
additional financial benefit or burden to the County. The Board consists of five
reprasentatives, of whom the Lancaster County Agricultural Society (the Society)
appoints three and the County appoints two.

Separate audited financial statements of the Agency, which include the financial

statements of the Agency, may be obtained from the Lancaster County Agricultural
Society, 4100 Noith 84" Street, Lincoln, Nebraska 68508,
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation
Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements of the County include the government-wide and the fund
financial statements, Prior to implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, the financial statements emphasized fund types and account groups. In the
GASB Statement No. 34 reporting mode!, the focus is on the County as a whole in the
government-wide financial statements, while reporting additional and detailed information
about the County's major governmental funds in the fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and statement of
activities) report information on all the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component unit. Governmental aclivities are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues. Likewise, the primary government ie reporied separately

from the Lancaster Leasing Corporation for which the primary government is financially
accouniable,

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expsnses of a
given function or segment are offset by program raevenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include charges fo customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or priviteges provided by a given function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly inciuded among program revenues are reporied instead as general
revenuess.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial stalements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are exciuded from the government-wide
financial statements. Fund financial staisments of the reporting entity are organized into
funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is
accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its
assets, habiliies, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.
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FANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 38, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Basis of Presentation {Continued)
Fund Financial Statements {Continued)

An empbhasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary
categories. The County considers ifs primary operating fund to be a major fund as well
as those govermnmental funds that meet the following criteria: total assets, habililies,
revenuas, of expenditures of that individuat governmental fund are at least 10 percent of
the corresponding fotal for all governmental funds combined. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements
as applicable.

Major fund reporting requirermeants do not apply to internal service funds. The combined
totals for all internal service funds are reported separately in a single column on the face
of the proprietary fund financial statements.
The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
Governmental Funds
General Fund
The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the County not included in
other specified funds. The General Fund accounts for the normal recurring activities of
the County (general government, health services, communily services, eic.}. These
activities are funded primarily by tax revenues.
Special Revenue Funds
Speciai Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds of the specific revenue
sources {other than special assessments or major capital projecis) that are legally
rastricted to expenditures for spscifisd purposes or designated to finance particuiar
functions or activities of the County.
Proprietary Funds
irternal Service Funds
internal Service Funds are used io account for the financing of goods or services

provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
Couniy or fo other governmental uni{s on a cosi-reimbursement basis.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

. NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Fiduiciary Fund Types
Pension Trust Funds

Pension Trust Funds are used to report resources that are required to be heid in trust
for the members and beneficiaries of defined contribution plans.

Agency Funds

Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the County in a purely custodial
capacity. Agency Funds typically involve only the receipt, tempaorary investment, and
remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other
governments.

The County reports the foliowing major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the County's main operating fund. It accounts for
all governmental financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Bridge & Special Road Fund — The Bridge & Special Road Fund is the County's bridge
and road construction fund. It accounts for the acquisition or construction of
infrastructure assets,

Lancaster Manor Fund — The Lancaster Manor Fund is the County's retirement home.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the fiming of
related cash flows. Properly taxes, sales {axes, franchise {axes, licenses, and interest
associated with the current fiscat period are ali considerad to be susceptible to accruat and
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.

19 -



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reporied using the current financiat resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available, Revenues are considered
o be availabie when they are caollectible within tha current period or soon encugh thersafter
to pay habiities of the current period. For this period, the government considers revenues to
be available if they are coliected within 60 days of the and of the current fiscal period.
Proceeds from long-term debt and acguisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing souwrces, Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting, However, expenditures, such as principal and interest on genseral long-
term debt, and claims and judgments, are recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related fiability is due.

The propristary fund financial statements are accounted for using the economic resources
measuraement focus and the accrual basls of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardiess of the timing of the related
cash flows.

Operafing income reporied in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and
expanses related o the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating
revenues for propriefary funds are charges to governmental agencies for services.

Principal operating expenses are the costs of services and include administrative expenses
and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-
operating in the financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For financial statement purposes, all highly liquid investments with original maturiies of
{hree months or less, are considered cash equivalents,

investments

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External invesiment Fools, investments are recorded at fair value. The
County’s investment policy allows investment in U.S. government obligations and short-term
interest bearing investments consisting of certificates of deposit and cther income producing
securities. It is also the County’s policy fo report inferest earned but not received in a
separate accouni from the principal.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year £Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable are all considered collectible by management. Based on prior experience
with receipt of taxes, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided related to taxes
receivable. Tax amounts not received within sixty days are considered deferred revenue in
the governmentai fund financial statements.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assefs are those assets which have been acquired for general government
purposes. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or reptacement cost if actual
historical cost is not known. Contributed assets, including those from the federal
governmeni, are recorded at estimated fair value on the daie received. The County's
capitalization threshold for equipment, buildings, and infrastructure is $5,000.
infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, and culverts. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight-line method with a mid-month convention.

The estimated useful lives for capital assets are as follows:

Years
Land improvemenis 20-50
Buildings 25 - 50
Machinery and equipment 5-20
Vehicles 8
Infrastruciure 26 - 50

The County determined historical infrastructure costs by reference io historical records or by
appraisal. Current cost is adjusted for the price change from the date of construction or
acquisition to the current date.

Compensated Absences

It is the County's policy to permit employees to earn annual vacation and sick leave at
various rates during their periods of employment. in the event of termination, an employee
is reimbursed for accumulated vacation time up to a maximum carry over of 240 hours.
Employees do not receive payment of unused sick leave upon fermination of employment
except for retirement, death, or if the employee has 15 years of service and has in excess of
1,000 hours of extended sick lsave.

Met Assets

Invesied in capital assets, net of related debt - This component of net assets consists of
capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and net of outstanding balances of any debis
used to finance those assets.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Net Assets (Continued)

Restricted net assets — This component of net assets may be used only to finance specific
types of transactions. Restricted net assets represent the balance of restricted assets less
the outstanding balances of any liabilities that will be seitled using the restricted assets.
There were no resirictad net assets at June 30, 2008,

Unrestricted nef asgets — This component of net assets does not meet the definition of either
net assets invested In capital assets, net of related debt or restricied net assets.

Fund Balance

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balances can be reserved,
unreserved-designated, and urnreserved-undesignated. The portion of the fund balance that
has been commitied for identified purposes is reserved fund balance.

Property Taxes

Based on the valuation as of January 1, property faxes are levied by the County Board on or
before October 15 of each year for all political subdivisions in the County. Real estate and
personal property taxes are due December 31 of the year in which the property is appraised.
One-half of the taxes become delinguent April 1 and August 1 of the following year.

The County coliects its own property taxes and those of certain other taxing entities.
Collections of the taxes for others, pending distribution, are accounted for in agency funds.

Counties are permitted by the State Constitution to levy a tax up to $0.50 per $100 of
assessed valuation for general governmenial services other than the payment of principal
and interest on bonded debt. They may levy taxes in addition to the $0.50 limitation upon a
vote of the people. The tax levy remained below the $0.50 limitation for 2008.

Also, $0.05 of the $0.50 iimit may only be levied lo provide services offered jointly with
another government under an inferfocal agreement. The County may share $0.15 of its levy
authority with rural fire districts and other poiitical subdivisions no longer having any levy
authority.

Additionally, the iegisiature, as part of a property tax relief package, prohibited counties from
adopling a budget containing "restricted funds” which are greater than 2.5% of the prior year
budgeted restricted funds, plus the percentage change in valuation increase attributable to
new construction and additions to buitdings in excess of 2.5%. Restricted funds include
property taxes, payments in-lieu-of taxes, and state aid less amounts budgeled for capital
improvements and bonded indebtedness.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued}

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditures of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed in the governmental fund types.

At the end of each budget period, unencumbered, unexpended appropriations lapse.
Appropriations in the governmental fund lypes are charges for encumbrances when
commitments are made. Fund baiances are reserved for outstanding encumbrances, which
serve as authorization for expenditures in the subsequent year. There were no
encumbrances as of June 30, 2008.

income Taxes

The County quaslifies as a tax-exempt organization under Section 115 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is required.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The County follows the procedures described below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the County's financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements
of the Nebraska Budget Act.

On or before August 1, the County Board of Commissioners prepares and transmits a
budget for the County showing the projected requirements, outstanding warrants, operating
reserve, cash on hand at the close of the preceding fiscal year, projected revenue collecied
from sources other than property tax and amounts (o be raised by property taxation.

The budget is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. Encumbrances are also reflected
as expenditures for budgetary purposes. At least one public hearing must be held by the
County Board of Commissioners.

Cn or before September 20 each year, the County Board of Cormmissioners, afier the action

of the State Board of Equatization and Assessment has been certified to the County Clerk,
the budget, as revised, is adopted and the amounts provided therein are appropriated.
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LLANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2608

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Internal Activities

When internal service funds are reported in the government-wide statements of aclivities,
only their residual balances are reported. Eliminations are made in the statement of
activities to remove the “doubling-up” effect on internal service fund activity. However, there
are situations in which an internal service fund may have revenues and expenses that
shouid not be considered internal. 1 happens when an internal service fund, for example,
has transactions with organizations outside the primary government. Accordingly, these are
not eliminated in the stalement of aclivities. Rather, the revenues and expenses are
reported in the general administrative funciion of the government. The Counly’s internal
service funds have transactions that are primarily with outside organizations and therefore,
no eliminations are required.

Interfund Activity

interfund activity is reporied as lcans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers.
Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject
to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed fo be at market or near
miarket rates, are trealed as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements ocour
when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiing fund, and reduces its
related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers,

Transfers between governmental funds or between proprietary funds are netied as part of
the reconeiliation to the government-wide financial statements,

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those estimates and assumptions affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilifies, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses.
Actual results could vary from the estimates employed.

NOTE B - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
Deposits
As of June 30, 2008, the carrying amount, which approximates fair value, of the County's
investments was $37,670,175. The investments consisted of certificates of deposit, U.S.

Government Securities, and Federal Home Loan Bank Noles. These securities are held
in the County's name.,
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE B - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (Continued}
Deposits {Continued}

The Public Funds Deposit Security Act, State Statute Sections 77-2386 to 77-23,106,
require banks either to give bonds or to pledge government securities (types of which
are specifically identified in the Statutes) to the County Treasurer in the amount of the
County's deposits.

The Statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the amount of the deposits
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {(FDIC).

The County has pooled the cash resources of the various funds for investment
purposes. Fach fund’s portion of total cash and investments is summarized by fund type
on the combining balance sheets. interest earned on pooled funds, except for interest
earned on the pension trust, is credited to the County General Fund in accordance with
Nebraska State Statute Section 77-2315, R.R.S. 1843,

At June 30, 2008, the County's cash deposits or certificates of deposit, in excess of the
$100.000 FDIC limits, are covered by collateral held in a Federal Reserve pledge
account or by an agent for the County and thus no custodial risk exists. On October 3,
2008, with the passage of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, FDIC
deposit insurance temporarily increased from $100,000 to $250,000 per depositor
through Decembsr 31, 2009.

Cash and investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 2008:

Cash and Cash Equivalents Carrying Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents owned by the County $41,195,862 $ 41,185,862

Cash and cash equivaients held in trust by the County 16,923,673 16,923,673

Toial cash and cash equivalents owned and held in

trust by the County $58,119,535 § 58,118,635
Investments

For an investment, cusiodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counierparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investment securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. None of the underlying securities for the
County's investments at June 30, 2008 are subject to custodial credit risk, as they are
heid in an account in the County's name, and by an agent who is not the counterparty 1o
the investment transaciions.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 39, 2008

NOTE B - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RiSK {Continued)
investments (Continued)

Nebraska Stafe Statute Section 77-2315 authorizes the Counly Treasurer, with the
consent of the County Board, to invest in U.S. Government bonds, bonds and
debentures issued either singularly or collectively by any of the twelve federal land
banks, the twelve intermediate credit banks, or the thirteen banks for cooperatives under
the supervision of the Farm Credit Administration, United States Treasury notes, bills or
certificates of indebtedness maturing within two years from the date of purchase, or in
certificates of deposit.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in inferest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with State law and its investment policy, the
County manages its exposure to deciines in fair values by changes in interest rates by
limiting all investments fo maturities of two years or less. The current weighted average
maturity of the County's investment portfolic is less than three months.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will nat fulfil
its obligations. Coutty policy addresses credit risk by requiring ownership in federal
securities for all investments greater than the $100,000 FDIC insured amount. The
external investment funds are comprised of Nebraska Public Agency Trust (NPAIT) and
Short-Term Federal investment Trust (STFIT). NPAIT and STHT invest in only the
highest qualily securities, inciuding U.S. Government spensored agencies, and
guaranteed student ioans.

Concentration of credif risk is the risk of loss attribuied fo the magnitude of a
government's investment in a single issuer. The County's investment policy places no
limits on the amount the County may invest in any one user. Concentration of risk is not
an issue since alf investments are coverad by issuer's assets held in the name of the
County.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the evenl of a bank failure, a government's
deposits may not be returned to it. The County's deposit policy for custodial credit risk
requires compliance with the provisions of state law.

Pension Trust Fund

The pension program operates in compliance with all stale and federal siatutes,
particularly Nebraska State Staiute 30-3208. County pension funds are invested
according to a plan developed and reviewed annually by the County. The plan defines
the purposes of the assets, ideniifies the parties responsibie for managing the
investment process, establishes both broad and specific written guidelines for the
investment of the fund's assets, and establishes criteria io monitor and evaluate the
performance of the invesiment managers. The plan authorizes investments in common
and preferred stocks, corporate bonds, cash-equivaient securities, certificates of
deposits of insured instifutions, money market funds, and government bonds. They can
be in mutual funds or privately managed accounts.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE B - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK {Continued)
Pension Trust Fund (Continued})

There are fixed income securities guidelines: maximum of 2% cof any single corporale
issuer and 5% for other issuers; no limit on fixed income {reasury or agency issues of the
U.S. government. invesimenis in the employees’ retirement system are valued at the
carried amount, which approximates fair vaiue. The County’s financial statements are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and plan member
contributions are recognized in the period that the contributions are due.

At June 30, 2008, the balancas of investments in the employees’ retirement system were
$86,715,670. The County's allocation of investments is as follows:

Investment Type ~ FairValue Concentration
Cash $ 39,113 0.05%
Guaranieed investment contracis 30,879,536 35.61%
Government bonds 1,667,701 1.92%
Mutual funds 14,612,470 16.85%
international equities 11,981,779 13.78%
Domestic equities 2758507 31.7¢%

Total $ 86,7158670 100.00%

NOTE C - DUE FROM/TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES
Due From Other Governmentai Agencies
Due from other governmental agencies are all considered collectible by management
except for patient receivables of the County’s Community Mental Health Center. Al
patient and insurance receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Patient and insurance receivables in excess of 30 days totaling $215,728 comprise the
allowarnice for doubtful accounts.

Due To Other Governmenial Agencies

Due to other governmental agencles consisted of amounis due fo the Commission
amounting to $125,000 at June 30, 2008.
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LLANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS

The changes in capital assets designated for the operation of the County for the year ended

June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
Non-depreciable capital aszets
Land $ 6,840,540 $2,755.421 $ - § 9.585 961
Censtruction in progress 802,908 - - 502,908
Depreciable capital assets
Land improvements 2,557,377 - - 2,557,377
Buildings 72,965,972 1,765,267 - 74,731,238
Machinery and equipment 7,380,600 1,406,784 (198,735) 8,560,649
Vehicles 8,965,206 469,448 (425 720) 9,008,934
tnfrastructure £9,063,861 2412,063 (828,870} 60,646,954
150,833,016 6,053,662 (1,451,425} 155,535,153
Accumulated depreciation {51.619,719) (3,786,596 1,042,986 (54,363,319)
99,313,287 2,266,266 (408,420) 101,171,834
$107,058,745 $5,022,387 $(408.429) $111,670,703

The following ts a reconciliation of invested in capital assets, net of related debt:

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

Related debt

$ 111,870,703

(5,769,921)

Invested in capital assets, net of related dabt

Deprsciation expense was charged to functions as

Govemmental activities:
General Government
Fublic Works
FPublic Health and Human Services

Total Depreciation Expense

.08 -

$ 105,900,782

follows:

$ 1,957,525
1,625,936
303,135

$ 3,786,596




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE E - IRREVOCABLE LETTERS OF CREDIT

The County had two irrevocable letters of credit for $3,000,000 and $300,000 with & financing
nstitution which had no activity during the current year and had no outstanding balance at June
30, 2008. The letiers of credit agreements expired August 10, 2007 and July 31, 2007,
respectlively.

NOTE F - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Capital Lease Obligations

The County has enlered inio several capital lease agreements for equipment and vehicles with
monthly instaliments of $1,315 to $4,163 with interest rates ranging from 3.15% to 3.65%.
Assets under capital leases totaled $375,000 with related accumufated depreciation of $299,898
at June 30, 2008.

Bonds Payable
Bonds payable as of June 30, 2008, are summarized as follows:

$7,145,000 Tax Supported Lease Rental Bonds, Series 1998, issued
Qotober 3, 18098, payable in scheduled semiannual instaliments
including principal amounts ranging between $265,000 to $335,000
plus interest, due on July 18, and Jdanuary 15, commencing July 15,
1998, with interest ranging from 4.0% to 4.5%, final paymeni due July
15, 2012. $ 2,775,000

$4,840,000 Limited Tax Building Bonds, Series 2004, issued June 30,
2004, payable in scheduled semiannual instaliments including
principal amounts ranging between $320,000 to $610,000 plus
interest, due on May 1 and November 1, commencing November 1,
2005, with interest ranging from 1.65% to 4.00%, final payment due

November 1, 2014. : 2,940,000
Total bonds payable 5,715,000
Less current portion {1,180,000)

$ 4,535,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 34, 2008

NOTE F - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES {(Continued)

Change in lang-term aobligations for the yvear ended June 30, 2008 was as foliows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Gavernmental-type Activity; Balance Additiens Redustions Balance One Year
Capital Lease Agraements $ 100,497 5 - L (37,208) $ 72,289 5 28277
Bonds Payabie 8,850,000 {1,135,000) 5,715,000 1,180,000
Less deferred amounts for
issuance discounts {18,245} 1,877 {17,368)
Total Bonds Payable 6,830,755 - {1,133,123) 5.697,632
Compensated Absances 5.237.707 377,412 5615119 1873588
Governmental-type Activity
Long-Term Liabilities 12177959  _§ 377412 $ (1,470331)  $11.385,040 53,084,875

Principal and interest requirements to maturity on capital lease obligations and on bonds
outstanding prior to the effects of the unamortized discounts at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Year ending sung 30, Principal paymonts
2009 $ 1,208,277
2010 1,219,823
2011 955,332
2012 1,000,857
2013 580,000
Thersafter 725,000
Total $ 5,787,288

Inferest payments

$ 209,784

166,191
124,831
85,356
43,006
29,300

3

£58,468

NOTE G - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers are related to funding for capital projects, Jease payments, debt service, or
The following schedule briefly summarizes the County’s

reallocations of special revenues.
transfer activity:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE G - INTERFUND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Transfers n

Bridges & Lancasier Other
General Special Manor Governmental
Fund Road Fund Fund Funds Total

General Fund $ 5,000 55,261,582 $ - $ 272,818 $5.,5306.211
g Bridges & Special
® Road Fund - - w - -
“g Langaster Manor
E Fund - . . . .
- Other Governmental

Funds $306.663 - 2,500 1,443,153 1,762,316

$311,663 $5,261,592 $ 2,800 $§ 1,718772 §7.291 527

NOTE H - LEASES

Operating Leases

The County lsases the County/City Building, the 233 Building, the K Street Power Plant, the
Justice and Law Enforcement, the 9" and J Building, and parking spaces at no cost to the
Commission. The Cammission uses the premises for the purpose of providing space to tha
City and County departments, agencies, and functions. The Commission is responsibie for
furnishing services, including heat, water, etectricily, air conditioning, elevalor service,
cleaning services and mainienance, and repair to the City and County departments
inhabiting the space. The costs to the Commission are funded through charges to the
inhabitants based upon the number of square feet of space allocated annually. The amount
charged to the inhabitants is based on total expenditures incurred in the previous year.
These charges are then allocated based on sguare footage held by the inhabitant. This is
done each year. The County paid rent reimbursement of $4,460,239 to the Commission for
the year ended June 30, 2008, The leases for the County/City Building, the 233 Building
and parking space continue until all of the bonds have been fully paid and are no ionger
outstanding. The lease for the K Sireet Power Plant expires on October 15, 2014,

The Communily Mental Health Centar (a special revenue fund of the Caunty) maintains
month-to-month operating leases for various apartments used to house the mentally ill, as
well as office space used for operations. lLease expenditures paid were approximaiely
$316,713 for the year ended June 30, 2008.
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Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE H - LEASES {Continued)
Lancaster Manor Lease Agreement

The Corporation contracted with the County for the iease of the property known as
Lancastar Manor. The contract reguires iease payments in the amount necessary fo salisfy
the hond and interest requirements. The lease payments received during the vear ended
June 30, 2008 were enough to cover the inferest requirements, but not the bond principal
requirements. The contract provides that the Corporation shall retain title to the building and
fand until the bonds are paid in full. Upon retirement of the bonds, the building and land
becomes the property of the County. Al contract payments are assigned to Wells Fargo as
paying agent of the cutstanding bonds and interest. The bonds maturing on or after January
15, 2007 are subject {o redemption prior to maturing at the option of the Corporation.

The minimum rental payments are required by ihe lease agreement unless sufficient funds
exist in restricted cash and invesimeni accounts, whereby, the County may abate the
minimum rental payments. Required minimum rental paymenis for the year ended June 30,
2008 were partially abated in accordance with the lease agreement. Due to the partial
abatement of rental payments for the year ended June 30, 2008, this lease is treated by the
Corporation as an operating iease in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Statement No. 13, Accounting for Leases.

The following are the fulure minimum rental payments required under the terms of the lease:

Year Ending June 30,

2009 $ 684,303
2010 685,295
2011 684,643
2012 692,076
2013 342 538
Tatal Minimum Payments Required $ 3,088,855

NOTE t - EMPLCYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The County Board of Commissicners has adopted the provisions of Section 23-1118, RR.S.
1943, a Nebraska State Statute, which provides any county that has a population of more than
100,000 inhabitants, the authority to provide rsetirement benefits fo its employees and to
establish a fully funded, single-employer, defined contribution retirement plan, the Lancaster
County Nebraska Employees’ Retirement Plan {the Pian).
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE ! - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued)

The Plan automatically covers subsiantially all regular employees who have attained age 25
and completed one year of continuous service. Upon attaining age 21 and after completing six
months of continuous service, employees may voluntarily enter the Pian. The employee has the
choice of whether or not to participate in the Plan if the employee has attained the age of 55
prior fo the date of employment. The County is required to coniribute 150% of each
participant's mandatory contribution. The participant’'s mandatory contribution is 5.2% of the
patficipant's salary. The combined confributions cannot exceed 13% of earned income. At
June 30, 2008 there were 1,433 plan membets.

Several different payment options, based upon ihe full accumulated value of participant
confributions and the vested portion of employer contributions, are available to the participant
upon death, disability, normal refirement at age 80, or early retirement at age 55 with ten
consecutive years of participation in the Plan.

The employee and employer contributions are mainiained in separate accounts. The employee
account is always fully vested. The employer account vests at 20 percent per year for years
three through seven in the Plan. For the year ended June 30, 2008, employses contributed
$3,6892 243 and the County contributed $2,434,493, which includes employee forfeitures, to the
Plan. A final category represents deposits made to the plan other than normal payroll deferrais
and employee benefits, which could include loan repayments or rollover deposits, comprigses the
remaining bafance of total contributions.

NQTE J - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Lancaster County post-employment health program was established in September 1998 as
a defined contribution plan to enable the County {0 set aside manies for employges, based upon
employee graup, to use for qualified medical expenses after termination. At June 30, 2008,
there were approximately 1,200 plan members. Contributions by the County are based upon
amounts expressly stated in Union confracts by tier status of empioyee. Total employer
contributions during fiscal year 2008 were $793,704. The empioyee is nof required 1o contribute
to the trust fund. The money is paid {0 an account in the employee’s name on a "pay as you go”
basis. The employee accounts are administered by Nationwide Investment Corporation. Plan
investments are reported at fair value.

After six months of employment with the County, employees in four of the six employee groups
are automatically enrolled in the program at no cost to the employee. The gualification for this
program is listed under the internal Revenue Code 510(¢}(9). All contributions and
expenditures are outlined in the Trust Agreement and Participation Agreement and may change
from time to time to comply with the changes in the Trust Agreement or tax code.
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NOTE K - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed fo various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction
of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters. These risks of loss
are covered by various commercial insurance policies (with various deductibles) with the
exception of workers' compensation and general liability. The County has established the
Workers' Compensation Loss Fund Other and Self-Insurance Loss Funds {(proprietary funds) to
account for and finance a portion of its uninsured risks of loss. The County is self-insured up to
$300,000 per ocourrence for workers' compensation risks and up 1o $250,000 per occurrence
for general lhability risks. The selff-insurance programs are adminisiered by the Workers'
Compensation and Risk Management Manager. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial
coverage in any of the (ast three years. Commercial insurance covers the excess of the self-
insured amount to a maximum of $1,000,000 for employers' liability, current statutory limits of
$2.000,000 for workers' compensation and $5,000,000 for general Kability.

Tha County utilizes the services of an actuary to prepare an analysis of the seif-insured workers’
compensation and general liability risks. The analysis 8 used io assist the County with its
financial planning, budgeting, and management of the self-insurance programs. The programs
are funded on a cash basis with annual premiums charged to all governmental fund types,
except Lancasier Manor Fund, based on past experience of incurred losses and remitted to the
Workers' Compensation Loss and Self-insurance Proprietary Funds.

FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies requires that a liability for claims be
reported if information prior fo the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is
probable that a liability has bean incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount
of the foss can be reasonably estimated. The County has not purchased annuity contracts from
commercial insurers fo satisfy certain liabilities under workers' compensation or general liability
claims, The estimated #iability for claims is $1,372,769 at June 30, 2008. For some of the
claims deemed probable or certain, no liability could be estimated.

NOTE L - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Several claims were filed against the County relating to several wrongful death fawsuits, injuries,
and meadical expenses, In management's opinion, it is premature at this time to determine the
likelihood of an unfavorable ocuicome or the range of potential loss on these claims. A clamm
was filed against the CMHC relating to damages for medical bills in the amount of $100,000.
This matier has been turned over to the appropriate insurance carrier, which is responsible for
direct processing of the case. Presently a progression order has been entered and trial is set

for January, 2009, Some liability has been determined to be reasonably possible as of June 30,
2008,

There was also a political subdivision tort claim filed against the Lancaster Couniy Corrections,
and Corrections staff and medical providers, in the amount of $1,000,000 for medical bills, pain
and suffering, and temporary and permanent physical injury, The County Board of
Commissioners has formally denied the claim and no complaint has been filed as of this date.
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NOTE L - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Lancaster Manor (a special revenue fund of the County) is not part of the Workers'
Compensation Loss Fund and pays its claims on a cash basis. As of June 30, 2008 the
Lancaster Manor had no liability refated to contingent liabilities. The County has not set aside
funds to cover this estimated Hability and will pay them when and if these claims come due. For
claims deemed probable or certain, no liability could be estimated.

NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT
The County has participated in the following conduit debt arrangaments:

Hospital Autherity No. 1 - Bryvan LGH Medical Center

Lancaster County has issued Revenue Refinancing Bonds, for $35,750,000 to refinance the
Series 1988 bonds. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is
cbligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds, Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as labiities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $12,315,000.

Haspital Authority No. 1 - Lincoln Medical Education Foundation, Inc.

l.ancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds for $4,250,000 to
finance a pottion of the costs of the acquisition, construction, equipping and installing
healthcare and related facilities. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008,
the aggregate principal amount payabie was $1,17%,000,

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Lincoin/Lancaster Drug Proiects

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Bevelopment Revenue Bonds for 31,515,600 to
acquire and renovate a facility o be occupied by Center Pointe, a substance abuse center,
Neither Lancaster County nor any polifical subdivision thereof is obiigated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $1,210,000.
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NQTE M - CONDUIT BEBT {Continued)

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Brvan LGH Medical Center

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds for $33,880,000 {o
pay for the cost of constructing, acquiring, equipping and furnishing certain capital
improvements to the hospital's facilities. Neither Lancaster County nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accerdingly, the
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June
30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was paid in full,

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Dialysis Center {Seriag 2000

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds for $950,000 to
provide for payment of principal and interest on the 1996 bonds and {o pay a portion of the
costs of acquiring equipment and furnishing for a 12 station hemodialysis facility located at
4911 North 26™ Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County nor any poiitical
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reporied as liabiiities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June
30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was $310,000.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Eastmont Towers Prolect (Serieg 2004)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds not o
exceed $4,255,000 to refund the Series 1988 Revenue Bonds (Easimoni Towers Project)
for both the project and facililies located at 8315 "0 Sireet, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither
Lancaster County nor any polifical subdivision thereof iz obhigated in any manner for
repayment of the bonrds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilites in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount
payabie was $3,805,000.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Immanuet Betirement Communities {(Serieg 200043

Lancaster County has issued Variable Rate Health Facility Revenue Bonds for $37,000,000
to finance the cost of purchasing, constructing, acquiring and improving a healthcare and
residenttal facility for the elderty owned by Immanuel Retirement Communities. Nsither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statemenis. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $33,530,000.
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NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued)

Hespital Authority - Bryan LOH (Series 2001A)

Lancaster County has issued Hospital Revenue Bonds for $78,380,000 to be used for the
Bryan LGH Medical Center Project. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as labilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008,
the aggregate principal amount payahle was 375,495,000,

Hospital Authority - Development Services of Nebraska (Series 2001)

Lancaster County has issued Indusirial Developmeni Revenue Bonds for $1,400,000 fo
finance heaithcare faciliies to be located at 8125 Joshua Drive, 1720 Timber Ridge Road
and 5001 North 57" Street. Neither Lancaster County nor any poliitical subdivision thereof is
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilties in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $896,018,

Tabitha, Inc, (Series 20013

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds for $1,389,000 1o be
used for the acquisition, construction and equipping of improvements and additions to
heaithcare facilities owned and operated by Tabitha, inc. Neither Lancaster County nor any
political subdivision thereof is abligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as lisbilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payabie was $710,504.

Plastic Companies Enterprises. Inc. (Serieg 2002}

Lancaster County has issued Indusirial Development Revenue Bonds not to exceed
$1,300,000 to defray all or a portion of the cost of acquiring, and installing certain
equipment for the molding of plastics and related necessary and appropriate equipment
and facilities focated in Lancasier County, Nebraska and operated by Plastic Companies
Enterprises, Inc, a Texas corporation and it8 wholiy-owned subsidiaries, Geist
Manufacturing Corp. and Heinke Technology, inc. Neither Lancaster County nor any
politica! subdivision thereof is obiligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds,
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as ligbililies in the accompanying financiat
statemenis. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregaie principal amount payable was paid off
with the Plastic Companies Enterprises, Inc. Series 2008 bond issuance.
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NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT {Continued)

Hospital Authority No, 1 - Tabitha, inc. Proiect {Series 2003)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$4,000,000, to acquire, construct and equip improvements and additions fo heaith care
facilities owned and operated by Tabitha, Inc. for facilities located at 4720 Randolph Street,
Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is
obligated in any manner for repaymeant of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilifiss in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $2,716,407.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Madonna Rehabilitation Proiect (Series 2003 A B. & C)

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $10,000,000, for the purpose of providing financing for the acquisition and
instaliation of equipment and retated remodeiing for use by Madonna at its rehabilitation
facilities. Neither Lancaster County nor any poiitical subdivision thereof is obligated in any
manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in
the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal
amount payable was $4,990,000.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Bryan LGH Medical Center Project (Series 2002)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds not to exceed
$45 000,000 for the benefit of Bryan LGH Medical Center, the generatl functional description
of the type and use of the project being the acquisition and installation of equipment and
related remodeling for use by Bryan LGH Medical Center at its acute care hospital facilities.
Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principat amount
payable was paid off with the 2008 series,

Hospital Authority No.1 - Grand Lodge Project (Series 2003)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Ravenue Bonds for $9,700,000 for the
Grand Lodge Project, Grand Lodge Retirement Community, inc., an ancillary care facility.
Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $8,889,385.
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NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT (Continued)

Hospitat Authority No. 1 - Brvan LGH Medical Center (Series 1996)

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue Bonds for $34,725,000 to
finance a portion of the acguisition expenses by Bryan LGH Medical Center of certain assets
of Lincoln General Hospital, to pay for routine capital expenditures of Lincoin General
Mospital, to pay the premium on the bond insurance policy and to pay certain costs incurred
in connection with the issuance of the 19978 bonds. Neither Lancaster County nor any
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds,
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was paid in full.

Lincoln Action Program (Series 19983

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds for $2,500,000 to
finance the construction of the new facility for lease to the Lincoln Action Program. Neither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as labilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $2,135,000.

Goodwill Industries (Series 19893

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue Bonds for $500,000 fo
acquire and construct an industrial warehouse facility and remode! office space and related
improvements. Neither Lancaster County nor any politicat subdivision thereof is obligated In
any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate
principal amount payable was $248,429.

Garner Industries {Series 2000 A and B)

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue Bonds for $6,500,000 for the
acquisition, construction, installation and compietion of land and depraciable property for a
manufacturing project for Garner Industries, Inc. Neither Lancaster County nor any politicat
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June
30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was $4,595,000.
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NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBRT {Continued}

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Child Guidance Project (Serias 2003)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds not to
excead $1,300,000 for the purpose of providing financing for the Lincoln/Lancaster County
Child Guidance Center, Inc. Project. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reparted as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008,
the aggregate principal amount payable was $778,337.

Hospital Authority No.1 - Cormhusker Place Project (Series 2003}

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds not to
exceed $2,200,000 to refinance existing debt and to make improvements to the facilty
located at 721 "K” Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as habilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June
30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was $1,265,794.

Hosbital Authority No.1 - CenterPointe Proiect (Series 2004)

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds not to
exceed $2.300,000 to finance the cost of acquiring certain real property and paying the
costs of construction, installation, eguipping and furnishing a building on such real property
for the CenterPointe project. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thersof
is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the
aggregate principal amount payabte was $2,118,382.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Madonna Rehabilitation Project (Series 2004)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds not to
exceed $9,000,000 to finance the acquisition, construction, equipping and furnishing of a
clinically integrated health center facility between 53 and 54" and Pine Lake Road in
Lincoin, Nebraska, Neither Lancaster County nor any polifical subdivision thereof is
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as habilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $7,361,114.
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NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT {Continued)

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Cornhusker Place (Serigs 2005)

l.ancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds not fo
exceed $450,000 to finance the extension of the bonds issued to refinance existing debt and
to make improvements to the facility focated at 721 "K" Street, Lincoin, Nebraska. Neither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as fiabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $305,192.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Clark Jeary Home Proiect (2005)

{ ancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds, not fo
excead $7.000,000 to finance a portion of the costs of acguiring, construction, equipping
and furnishing an assisted living facility owned and operated by Clark Jeary at 8401 South
33" Street, Lincoln, Nebraska, Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are
not reported as lighflities in the accompanying financia! statements. As of June 30, 2008,
the aggregate principal amount payable was $6,663,562.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Grand Lodge Proiect {2005}

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, for $13,050,000, for
the Grand Lodge Project, Grand Lodge Retirement Community inc., an ancillary care
facility. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any
manner for repayment of the bonds. Accardingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in
the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal
amount payable was $12 837,200.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Eastmont Towers (2008)

L.ancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds, not {o
exceed $2,800,000 to enable the Authority to finance renovations and additions o the
facilities of Christian Retirement Homes (Eastmont Towers), and to reimburse CRH for costs
previously incurred for such aclivities. Neither Lancasier County ner any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June
30,2008, the aggregate principal amount payabie was $2,635,000.
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NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT {Continued)

Hospital Authority No. 1 - St. Monica's Home {Series 2006)

Lancasier County has issued industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds, not to
exceed $2,000,000 to finance or refinance the costs of acquiring, renovating, remodeiing,
equipping and furnishing certain healthcare faciiities to be owned and operated by St
Monica's Home located at 120 Wedgewood Drive, Lincoin, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster
County nor any pelitical subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the
bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was $1,632,408.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Community Biood Bank Lancaster County Medical Society (Series
2007

Lancaster County has issued Revenus Bonds, for 31,250,000 for the Community Blood
Bank of Lancaster County Medical Saciety project, the medical services facilities, to be
located at 100 N 84" Street. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof
is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $1,926,073.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Bryvan LGH Medicat Center Project {Series 2008)

l.ancasier County has issued indusirial Developmeni Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$58 465,000, for the benefit of Bryan LGH Medical Center. Neither Lancaster County nor
any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reporied as liabilittes in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregale principal amouni payable was
$56,455 000.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Brvan LGH Medical Cetiter Proiect (Senas 2007A1)

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$80,000,000, for the benefit of Bryan LGH Medical Center. Neither Lancaster County nor
any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was paid in full
with the 2008 Series.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 38, 2008

NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT {Continued)

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Bryan LGH Medicat Center Project (Series 2007A2)

l.ancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue Bonds, not to exceed
$90,000,000, for the benefit of Bryan LGH Medical Center. Neither Lancaster County nor
any poiitical subdivision thereof is cobligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financiat
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was paid in fuil
with the 2008 series.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Clark Jleary Home Project {Series 2007}

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue and Refunding Bonds, not fo
exceed $1,000.000, to finance a portion of the costs of acqguiring, construction, equipping,
and furnishing an assisted living facility owned and operated by Clark Jeary at 8401 S. 33“
Strest, Lincein, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as ligbilties in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $806,266.

Hoseital Authority Ne. 1 - Community Blood Bank |ancaster County Medical Sociaty (Sarias
2006)

Lancaster County has issued Revenue Bonds, for $1,800,000 for the Community Blood
Bank of Lancaster County Medical Society project, the medical services facilities, to be
located at 2700 Fletcher Avenue, Lincoin, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster County nor any
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was $1,085,000

Hospitat Authority No. 1 - Houses of Hope of Nebraska (Series 2007)

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue and Refunding bonds, not to
exceed $2,000,000, to finance a portion of the cosis of acquiring, construction, equipping,
and furnishing three two-story, 14-bed fransitional residential substance abuse freatment
faciiities located at 1140 North Cotner Boulevard, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither Lancaster
County nor any political subdivision thereof is abligated in any manner for repayment of the
bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payabis was $1,883,069,
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEERASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 38, 2008

NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT {Continued)

Plastic Companies Enterprises, Inc. (Series 2008) - GE Capital

Lancaster County has issued industrial Development Revenue bonds, not to exceed
$2,100,000, to acquire, install, furnish and complete on certain real estate certain items of
equipment and personal property located in Lancaster County, Nebraska and to be operated
by Plastic Companies Enterprises, Inc., a Texas corporation. Neither Lancaster County nor
any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as fiabiliies in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount payable was $2,100,000.

Hospital Authority No. 1 - Bryan LGH Medical Center Project (Series 2008A - Union Bank)

Lancaster County has issusd Industrial Development Revenue bonds, not to exceed
$40,000,000, for the redemption of Series 2002 (Bryan LGH Medical Center Project) for the
acquisition and instaflation of equipment and related remodeling for use by Bryan LGH at its
acute care hospital faciliies. Neither Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof
is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the
aggregate principal amount payable was $40,000,000.

Haspital Authority No. 1 - Bryan LGH Medical Center Project (Series 20088 - Union Bank)

Lancaster County has issued Industrial Development Revenue bonds, not {o exceed
$90,000,000, for the redemption of Series 2007A-1 and Series A-2 issued fo refinance the
costs of a three story addition to existing hospital facilities, renovations of Women's Center,
addition to the School of Nursing, addifional parking facilities and certain other
improvements to the facilities located at 1600 South 48" Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. Neither
Lancaster County nor any political subdivision thereof is obligaied in any manner for
repaymant of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as llabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal amount
payable was $41,400,000.

NOTE N - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
The accompanying financial statements reflect the following prior pericd adjustments for net

assets. The adiustment to net assets was related to bond discounts that were not previously
recorded and accrued compensated absences not previously recorded in the propristary funds.
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L.LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continusd)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE N - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (Continued)

To correct for these arrors, beginning net assets were increased by $76,696. As a resuit, the
beginning net assets of $151,503,663, as originaily reported, have been increased fo
$151,580,359. The changes to beginning net assets are as follows: '

Beginning balance, Beginning
as previously Prior period balance, as
stated adjustment ... Jestated
Bond discount $ - $ 100,862  § 100,862
Accrued compensated
ahsences 3 - 3§ (24,168} 3 (24,1686)

Adjustment to proprietary fund balances relate to items referred to above and not correctly
reported in the prior year. To correct for these errors, beginning fund balances were decreased
by $11,138. As a resulf, beginning fund balances of $11,630,066, as originally reported, have
been decreased o $11,618,928. The changes to beginning fund balances are as follows:

Beginning balance, Beginning
as praviously Rrior period halance, as
stated adjustment restated
Bond discount $ N 13,028 $ 13,028
Accrued compensated |
absences $ - 3 {24,166) $ {24,1606)

NOTE O - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency (JPA) was created by
agreement with Lancaster County and City of Lincoln on September 9, 2008. The general
nature of the JPA’s activities is to issue bonds to pay the costs of constructing, equipping, and
furnishing new correctional facilities and to acquire refated equipment and furnishings.

A faciiities agreement has been approved between the JPA and Lancaster County. The
agreement appoints the County as the agent of the JPA for purposes of acquiring, constructing,
equipping, and furnishing the new Adult Correctional Facility project. The agreement also
provides that the County will maintain, operate, and manage the correctionat faciiity upon
completion.

On January 27, 2009, the JPA issued imited tax obligation bonds, Series 2009, in the amount of

$64,390,000. interest rates range from 1.00% to 5.00%. The bonds mature on December 1,
2028,
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISQON SCHEDULE
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The County foliows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the required

supplemental information in accordance with the statutory requirements of the Nebraska Budget
Act:

On or hefore August 1, the County Beard of Commissioners prepares and transmits a budget
for each County fund showing the projected requirements, outstanding warrants, operating
reserve, cash on hand at the close of the preceding fiscal year, projected revenue collected
from sources other than property tax and amount to be raised by property taxation. The budget
is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. Encumbrances are also reflected as expenditures
for budgetary purposes. Al least one public hearing must be held by the County Board.

On or before September 20, the County Board of Commissioners, after the action of the State
Board of Equatization and Assessment has been cerlified to the County Clerk, the budget, as
revised, is adopted and the amounts provided therein are appropriated.

The Caunty Board is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any
fund through resolution; however, revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund require
that an additional public hearing be held.

. NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying budgetary comparison schedules are presented on the cash basis of
accounting. All unexpended appropriations will lapse at the end of the budget year. However,
some appropriations may be encumbered at year end and disbursed in the following year due o
the nature of the project.

NOTE C - BUDGET LAW

The County is required by state law to hold public hearings and adopt annual budgets for all
funds on the cash basis of accounting. Total expenditures for sach fund may not exceed the
total budgeted expenditures. Any revisions to the adopled budget of total expenditures to any
fund reguire a public hearing.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA,
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2608

Federal Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through GrantoriProgram Title CFDA No. Expenditures
U.E. Deparim syt
Food Distribution Program
Lancasier Manor 10.650 3 1.472
Datention Centar 10.550 461
1,933
Passed-through Nebraska Department of Education
Mational School Lunch Program
Datention Cantar 10.358 61,853
Communify Mental Heatth Cenler 10.555 31,046
92,884
Taotal 118, Depariment of Agriculture 84,832
L. 3. Departrment of Justice
Passed-through State Commission on Law
Enforcement and Criminal Justice
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention:
Allocation to States 16 540 30,000
Title V Dalinquency Prevention Program (P} 16.548 23,000
Comprehensive Approaches lo Sex Offender Management 16.203 26,003
County Atiarney - Byrne Formula Grant Pregram 16.579 129,167
Courtty Sherniff - Byrne Formuia Grant Program 16.579 62,408
Vinlence Against Women Farmula Grants 16 586 201,688
Juvenile Accourtabiiity Inceniive Slock Granis 168,523 £3,506
VAWA Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and
Enforce Protection Orders 16.580 257,501
State Criminat Alien Assistance Program {SCAAP) 16.606 137,507
Public Safaty Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710 2,231
Mental Health Collaboration Grant 16,746 30,000
Total .S, Departiment of Justice 963,012
U.5, Department of Transportation
Paszad-through Nabraska Departmant of Motor Vehicles
State and Communily Mighway Safety * 20.600 7,689
Alcohal Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving
Pravention incentive Grant * 20.601 2,954
Passed-through Nebraska Department of Roads
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 3,152
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 13,795

* Denotes Highway Safety Cluster

The accompanying notes o schedule of expenditures: of federat awards
are an integral part of this slatement
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (Continued)
Year Ended Jure 30, 2008

Federai
Expenditures

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Granfor/Program Title CFDA No.
L.8 Department of Homeland Security
Passed-through Nebraska Military Department
State Domestic Preparedness Equipment Suppert Pregram G7.004
Emergency Mansgement Performance Grant 57042
State Homeland Security Program 97.067
Total U.5. Department of Homeland Security
U8 Deparlment of Health and Human Services
Passed-through Nebraska Depaniment of Heatth and
Human Services
Mental Health lanning and Demonstration Project
Froject Homeiess Grant, Mental Health Cars 93.150
Aicohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health Services
Block Grant, Mental Heaith Center 93,858
Substance Abuse and Manta! Health Services Administration
Projects of Regional and National Significance (CWMHC) 9%.243
Diecision Science in Rehabilitation 83.242
Drug-Free Community Support Frogram Granis 83278
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Discretionary Grants 893.976
Passed-ihrough Nebraska Departmend of Socis! Services
Child Suppert Enforcament, County Attorney {1y  83.583
Child Support Enforcement, Clerk of District Court {1}  98.583
Child Suppert Enforcement, Bailiff District Court (Y 93563
Total U.S. Deparimeni of Mealth and Human Services
(Qther Federal Assistance
Social Security Administration
Social Securiy Disability Insurance 95.001
.3, Entitfement Lands 15,226

Total Other Federal Assistance

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

(1} Determined to be a major program.

The accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
are an integral part of this statement
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3 475,008
£9,842
222,715

767 568

32,500
30,383

26,571
8,325
162,380
8,082

1,459,735
295,330
188,401

293,717

$ 4,169,923



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of Lancaster County, Nebraska (the County), and is presented on the cash basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizalions.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of, the financial statements.

NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the County and is presenied on the cash basis of accounting. Total grant
expenditures presented in the schedule do not include expenditures fundad through matching
contributions and other miscelianeous revenue.

NOTE C - SUB-RECIPIENTS

There are no sub-recipients of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule,

NOTE D - PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR NUMBERS

The identifying numbers assigned by the pass-through entities to the pass-through federai funds
were not available.
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STATEMENTS OF ACCOUNTABILITY



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
COUNTY CLERK
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS
Recording and Miscellaneous Fees
Marriage License Fees
Liguor Licenses
Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS
Paid to County Treasurar
Recording and Miscelaneous Fees
Marriage License Fees
Liguor Licenses
Total Disbhursements

BALANCE ON HAND - enid of year

SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND, end of year
Cash oh Hand
Total balance on hand

-B7-

17,738
32,115

7,220

57,073

17,738
32115

7.220
57073

$50
$50



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS
Charges for Services
Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS

Paid to County Treasurer
Documentary Stamp Tax
Recording Fees
Non-Fiting Fees

Paid to State
Deocumentary Stamp Tax

Refunds
Totat Disbursements

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND, end of year
Cash on Hand

Cash at Treasurer
Taotal balance on hand

_B2 -

$ 421,009

3,576,750

3,576,750

559,647
1,131,666
6,304

1,959,015
13,069

3,668,791

» 327,968

$ 22,432
305,536

$ 327,968



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
CLERK OF THE DISTRICT COURT
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS, TRUST FUNDS
(including alimony, child support and fees)

DISBURSEMENTS, TRUST FUNDS
{including alimeny, child support and fees)

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year

SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON BAND - end of year
Cash on Hand
Cash In Bank
vestments
Total balance on hand

-53 -

$ 1,543,200

7,568,487

7,333,998

$ 1778889

$ 300
1,651,125
127,284

$ 1,778,689



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
COUNTY SHERIFF
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year $ 21,455
RECEIPTS
Tax Account 180,637
Fee Account 702,190
Attorneys' Trust 176,925
Vehicie Inspection Fees 129,490
Contracts, Grants and Other 1,194 209
Total Receipts 2383451
DISBURSEMENTS
Tax Account 176,158
Fee Account 699 380
Atforneys' Trust 174,773
Vehicle Inspection Fees 129,490
Contracts, Granis and Cther 1,194,209
Total Disbursements 2,374,018
BALANCE ON HAND, end of year $ 30,888

SUNMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
Cash in Bank $ 30,888
Total balance on hand § 30,888

-B4 -



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
COUNTY ATTORNEY
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS
Receipts on Bad Checks
Collection Fess
interest
Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS
Payments on Bad Chacks Coflected
Coilection fees remitied to County Treasurer
Interest
Late Voids
Total Disbursements

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year

SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
Cash in Bank
Certificaie of Deposit
Cash at County Treasurer
Total balance on hand

-B5 -

$ 30,504

801,596
38,530
583

638,708

582,205
36,530
341

(19,928)

589,148

$ 70,065

$ 34640
10,000
25,425

$ 70,065




LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
WEED CONTROL
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year
RECEIPTS
DISBURSEMENTS

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year

SUMMARY OF BALANGE ON HAND - end of year
Cash on Hand
Total batance on hand

-BB -

20,164

25,177

43,024

2,317

2,317

2,317



LLANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
CORRECTIONS DEPARTMENT
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS

Room and Board
State Prisoner Reimbursement
inmate Fund
Commissary Funds
Telephone Commissions
Vending Machine Commissions
Work Release Meals
Workers Commissary/indigent Postage Reimbursement
Department of Justice
Social Security Reimbursements
Miscellaneous

Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS
County Treasurer
inmate Funds
Commissary Vendors
Total Disbhursements

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year

SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
Patty Cash
Cash in Bank
Total balance on hand

BT -

$ 23,668

1,273,950
793,831
2,797,442
168,671
129,197
37,880
97,967
25,806
137,507
26,400
8,078

5,498,829

2,530,721
2,789,950
167,820

5,488 491

32006

3 8b
31,911

$ 32,006



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
ENGINEER
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS
General Fund
Bridge Fund
Highway Fund
Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS
General Fund
Bridge Fund
Highway Fund
Total Dishursements

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year

-0B8 -

197
507,253
42 434

549,884

197
507,253
42 434

549 684



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
EXTENSION BOARD
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year $ 177,066
RECEIPTS
4-H Programs 13,173
Miscelianeous 18,383
Room Rentals 5925
Family Resources 4,725
Agriculturat Programs 11,107
General Resale 3977
Food and Nutrition 31
4-H Resale 5315
Horticulture and Forestry 1,069
Scale 2,530
Total Receipts 66,235
DISBURSEMENTS
4-H Programs 8,781
Miscellaneous 17,446
Room Rentals 6,732
Family Resources 2414
Agricutivral Programs 5701
General Resale 4,820
Food and Nutrition 1,076
4-H Resale 4,935
Herticulture and Forestry 1,697
Scale 2,344
Total Disbursements 56,946
BALANCE ON HAND - end of year $ 187,255

SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
Cash at County Treasurer $ 187,255
Total balance on hand $ 187,255

-BG-



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
YOUTH SERVICES CENTER
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITY
Year Ended June 30, 2008

BALANCE ON HAND - beginning of year

RECEIPTS
Petty Cash
Phone Cards/Commissions
Resident Trust
Total Recsipts

DISBURSEMENTS
Paid to County Treasurer
Phone Cards/Commissions
Petty Cash
Resident Trust
Total Disbursements

BALANCE ON HAND - end of year

SUMMARY OF BALANCE ON HAND - end of year
Petty Cash
Cash in Bank
Total balance on hand

-70-

$

$

$

$

4,026

49
11,040
20,535

32,524

11,940
131
25,420

37,491

{41)

15
(56)
(41)



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Lancaster County Board of Commigsioners
Lincoin, Nebraska

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Lancaster County, Nebraska (the County) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the County’'s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 17, 2009, We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the United Siates of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Compiroller General of the United States,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting as @ basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion an the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reperting.

Our consideration of internal confrol over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain control deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies,

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow
management or empioyees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funclions, to
prevent or detect misstaiements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affect the entity’s ability to
intigte, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amaerica such that there is morg
than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is more
than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. We
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and gquestioned
costs as items 2008-1, 2008-2, 2008-3, 2008-4, and 2008-5 to be significant deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL GONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS (Continued)

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in mare than a remote likelthood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily
disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses.
However, we believe that none of the significant deficiencies described above is a material
weakness,

Compliance and QOther Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompiiance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of Lancaster County, Nebraska
in a separate letter dated March 17, 2009,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissicners and
management of Lancaster County, Nebraska and the State of Nebraska and this report is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyane other than these specified parties

Omaha, Nebraska
March 17, 2008

PINUEHFENLUDLENT
MEMBERS OF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Commissioners
Lancaster County, Nebraska

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Lancaster County, Nebraska (the County) with the types of
compliance requiraments described in the U.S, Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of iis major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. The County's major federal programs are

_identified in the summary of auditors' results seciion of the accompanying schedule of findings
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PAEMEERSD DF

BKR

INTLRNATIONAL

and questioned costs. Compliance with the reguirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable {0 each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OME Circutar A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Frofit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the fypes of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and malerial effect on a major federal program
occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test hasis, evidence about the County's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necassary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the County’'s compliance with
those requirements,

in our opinion, the Counfy complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2008,

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. in planning and performing our audii, we considerad the
County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (Continued)

material effect on major federal programs in order {0 determine our auditing procaedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A controt deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compiiance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncomptiance with a type of compliance requirements of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the antity's internal control.

A material weakness 15 a significant deficiency, or a combination of significant deficiencies that
resuit in mere than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entily's internal
control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the
internal controt that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider io be material
weaknesses, as defined above,

This report is intended solety for the information and use of the Regional Governing Board, the
County's management, federal and state awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

{QM’M‘ F ﬁ SOCIHATES, yC.

Omaha, Nebraska
March 17, 2009
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS



LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

A. SUNMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

8.

a.

The Independent Auditors’ Report on Basic Financial Statemenis and Supplemental
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards dated March 17, 2009, expresses an
unqualified opinion on the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lancaster County,
Nebraska, an the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Five significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the basic financial statements were
found and are documented in Section B. We do not consider the significant deficiencies
to be material weaknesses.

No instances of noncompliance material to the basic financial statements were disclosed
during the audit in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major programs were disclosed during
the audit of major federal awards.

The independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable {o Each
Major Program and on {nternal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB A-133
for the County expressed an unqualified opinion on the major program.

There were no audit findings related to the major Federal award program that are
reguired {o be reported in accordance with Section 510 (C) of OMB A-133.

The program which was considered to be a major program was:

CFDA
Number Program Name
83.563 Child Support Enforcement

The threshold for distinguishing betwaen Type A and B programs was $300,000.

Lancaster County, Nebraska was congidered {o be a low-risk audites.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

2008-1 Condition: it was determined that the County should record individual investment

transactions (such as purchases, sales, and transfers of investments) reflecting all achvity
occurring during the fiscal vear.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (Continued)
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENGIES {Continued)

Criteria: Change in fair value is caiculated as the difference in fair value of investmenis at the
beginning of the year and the fair value at the end of the vear, taking into consideration
investment purchases and saies. The current year’s individual investment transactions need fo
be recorded in order to properiy refiect realized and unrealized gains and losses.

Effect. The County’s financial position would be understaied withouf the inclusion of these
transactions and balances on a monthly basis.

Recommendation: The County should record individual investment transactions as they occur
for ali investments.

Response: Lancasier County utilizes a separate investment program to record invesiment
fransactions. The issue is the transactions do not get recorded individually on the County's
accounting system. lLancaster County will have discussions o determine what options arg
available and possible.

2008-2 Condition: The responsibiiity for the preparation of financial statements resides with the
management of the County.

Criteria. Statement on Auditing Standards Number 112 suggests that management prepare its
financial statements in order to prevent or detect material misstatements, including footnote
disclosures. Management is fully capable of preparing its financial statements but faced time
constraints during the current fiscal year which precluded the preparation of the financial
statements,

Effect: Material disclosures and classification misstatements may not be detected.

Recommendation: Management of the County should prepare the financial statements in the
future.

Response: The County understands the responsibility for the preparation of financial statements
resides with them. The main obstacle is the iimited number of staff in the Budget and Fiscal
Office. Lancaster County will have discussions to determine what options are available and
possible.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008
B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (Continued)
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES {Continued)
2008-3 Condition: The County did not reconcile the capital assets listing to the general ledger
during the fiscal year. Trade-ins and disposals were not always recorded correctly and cash
proceeds from disposals were not recorded in the County’s fixed assets system.
Criteria; The capital assets listing should be reviewed and reconciled on a regular basis. Since
the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number
34, fixed assets that should be capitalized are expensed in the governmental funds and then
moved to the government-wide financiai statements from expenses to assets.
Effact. Capiiat asseis are not properly recorded or recorded at all.
Recommandation. The County should reconcile capital outlays to its additions, ensure
proceeds are recorded correctly, and reclassify any items not meeting the criteria for

capitafization io a repairs and maintenance account.

Response: The County agrees with the recommendations and will reconcile capital outiays and
reciagsify any items not meeting the criteria for capitalization.

2008-4 Condition: It was determined that the County did not reconcile transfers between refated
entities during the fiscal year,

Criteria; Transfers in and out between related entities should be recorded.

Effect. Significant fransactions may not be captured if iransfers in and out are not reconcited on
a reguar basis.

Recommendation: We recommend the County reconcile transfers between related enfities on a
regular basis, preferably monthiy.

Response; The County agrees with the recommendation and will reconcile transfers.

2008-5 Condition: The computer system in place is lacking the capability to determine what
comprises cash and investments belonging to the County by fund.

Criteria; Alt bank reconciliations and schedules should indicate batances by fund.
Effect: Considerable effort is required at fiscal year end to determing which funds are owned by

the County, by fund, and by agencies in that fund, in order {o correctly report account balances
and cash flows on the vear end financial statements.
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2008
B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT {Coantinued)
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (Continued)
Recommendation: The County should maintain a monthly, detailed schedule that reflects, by
fund, the breakdown of agencies within that fund and the amount of cash in financial institutions

and on hand.

Response: Lancaster County will inciude this finding in their discussions in regard to preparation
of the financial statements.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None
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LANCASTER COUNTY, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2007

FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

WEAKNESS NOTED

The County does not currently have
adequate support and conirols in place
regarding journal entries.

A number of tfransactions and accaount
balances that should have been
inciuded in the County's financial
statements for the prior period were
omitted resulling in a significant number
of prior period adjustments during the
current year.

The computer system in place is
inadequate in  determining  what
comprises  cash and investments
belonging to the County and what
portion is owned by other governmental
eniities.
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1.

3.

CURRENT STATUS

The County has corrected this by
involving the Budget and Fiscal
Officer in the review process.

The County has corrected this by
identifying the  prior  period
adjustments in the current year,

The finding remains as of June 30,
2008



